
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 

October 8, 2018 

6:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – David Harwell, Member of the Vestavia Hills United Methodist Church 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition  

a. Announcement Of Two Upcoming Vacancies On The Vestavia Hills Library Board 

– Mayor Curry 

b. Announcement Of Upcoming Vacancy On Vestavia Hills Parks And Recreation 

Board – Councilor Paul Head 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Approval of Minutes – September 17, 2018 (Work Session) and September 24, 2018 

(Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

9. Resolution Number 5094 – Annexation – 90 Day – 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, Block 2, 

Coventry 1st And 2nd Sector; Barbara French, Owner  (public hearing)   

10. Ordinance Number 2797 – Annexation – Overnight – 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, Block 

2, Coventry 1st And 2nd Sector; Barbara French, Owner  (public hearing)   

11. Resolution Number 5095 – Annexation – 90 Day – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 1, 

Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Alan and Patricia Foster, Owners   (public hearing)   

12. Ordinance Number 2798 – Annexation – Overnight – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 1, 

Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Alan and Patricia Foster, Owners   (public hearing)   

13. Resolution Number 5096 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 2, 

Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Jason and Laura Sparks, Owners    (public hearing)   

14. Ordinance Number 2799 – Annexation – Overnight – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 

2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Jason and Laura Sparks, Owners    (public hearing)   

15. Resolution Number 5097 – A Resolution Requesting The De-Annexation Of Property 

Located At 3961 Briar Oak Drive; Robert Butler, Owner, Frank Galloway, III, 

Representing   (public hearing)   



16. Ordinance Number 2802 – An Ordinance Establishing The Cahaba Heights And City 

Center Entertainment Districts    (public hearing)   

New Business 

17. Resolution Number 5102 – A Resolution Changing The Dates And/Or Times Of Council 

Meetings And Work Sessions For November And December 

18. Resolution Number 5103 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 

Deliver A Project Agreement With The State Of Alabama Department Of Labor For The 

Sicard Hollow Park Project 

19. Ordinance Number 2803 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Professional Services Agreement With Rice Advisory, LLC 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

20. Resolution Number 5104 - A Resolution Declaring An Emergency And Authorizing The 

City Manager To Authorize Roadway Repair For A Section Of Vestaview Lane Due To 

A Water Main Break   (public hearing)   

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

21. Citizen Comments      

22. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular work session on this date at 
6:00 PM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the 
meeting to order and the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Paul J. Head, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Danny Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communication Specialist 
 
 

TCU UPDATE – INFRASTRUCTURE AND COMMUNITY SPACES PLAN 
 

 Ken Upchurch, TCU gave an update on the Community Spaces Plan.  He indicated 
that they are beginning to get input on the project designs. 
 
 Stephen Allen, William Blackstock Architects, explained the high-level design 
documents.  He also explained the updated master plan for Wald Park. 
 
 Mr. Upchurch explained that this will be placed on the website tomorrow in order 
for public viewing. 
 
 Mr. Pierce and Mrs. Cook emphasized the need for parking for all the facilities in 
the Wald Park complex.  Discussion ensued as to the increase in spaces relative to the 
current parking.  Mrs. Cook asked about the possibility of adding an observation deck on 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

the roof of the pool building, to make the appearance of the pool from Hwy. 31 more 
attractive. 
 
 

ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICTS 
 

 Mr. Downes gave an update on two proposed entertainment districts.  One is located 
at City Center and the other in the Cahaba Heights areas.  He explained these will be 
brought forward at the next meeting and then a public hearing will occur on October 8. The 
Council discussed whether Meadowlawn Park should be excluded from the Cahaba 
Heights entertainment district. 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:32 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Jason Hardin, Deputy Police Chief 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 

Dennis Anderson, Administrative Pastor, Vestavia Hills Baptist Church, led the 
invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Judge Jill Ganus, Republican candidate for Jefferson County District Judge, Place 11, 
introduced herself and asked for support in the upcoming November election. 

 Judge Davis Lawley, Republican candidate for Jefferson County District Court, Place 3, 
Family Court, introduced himself and asked for support in the upcoming November 
election. 

 Alli Summerford, Democratic candidate for Alabama House District 48, introduced 
herself and asked for support in the upcoming November election. 

 Mrs. Cook recognized and welcomed Dr. Todd Freeman, Vestavia Hills City Schools 
Superintendent, to the meeting. 

 Mayor Curry also recognized former Superintendents Carleton Smith and Charles Mason. 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 2 
 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Becky Dickerson, Chamber Board member, and Karen Odle, 
President of the Chamber of Commerce who were in attendance representing the Vestavia 
Hills Chamber of Commerce. 

 Karen Odle, President, Chamber of Commerce, stated they had over 330 volunteers help 
on September 8 for Helping Hands event which continues to do all kinds of projects all 
throughout the City to serve 27 projects. 

 Mr. Head recognized Park Board members Earl Lawson and Anne Smyth. 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation for Fire Prevention Month - October 2018.  Mr. 
Downes read the Proclamation aloud and the Mayor presented it to Marvin Green, Fire Chief. 
 
 

RECOGNITION – PATRICK H. BOONE, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 The Mayor recognized Mr. Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney for the City of Vestavia Hills.  
He read a short biography and presented Mr. Boone a plaque on behalf of the City Council in 
recognition of his services to the City for more than 41 years as both City Councilor and City 
Attorney.  
 
 Mr. Boone recognized his wife, Nancy, his children, Julie and Patrick, and grandchildren, 
Howie, Patrick and Sam.  He also recognized his administrative assistant, Gail Pickard, who has 
worked with him for the past 41 years.  He thanked the City Council for giving him the 
opportunity to serve. 
 
 Many friends and residents spoke, providing tribute and thanks for Mr. Boone for his 
decades of service to the City. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 None. 
 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 No reports. 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending August 2018. He read and 
explained the report balances. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 3 
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
The minutes of September 10, 2018 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval. 

 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the September 10, 2018 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
 The Mayor stated that Resolution Number 5100 and Ordinance Number 2800 require 
unanimous consent for immediate consideration and action.  He opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action of 

Resolution Number 5100 and Ordinance Number 2800 was made by Mr. Weaver 
and second was by Mrs. Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5100 
 

Resolution Number 5100 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Remit Attorney 
Fees For Professional Services For The Creation Of The Liberty Park Area 
Public Road Cooperative District    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5100 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that work recently began on the Liberty Park infrastructure 
improvements.  He explained that the creation of the district represents three municipalities 
including Vestavia Hills, Birmingham and Jefferson County.  He explained that the City of 
Vestavia Hills initiated the effort for these improvements and the creation of this cooperative 
district.  This Resolution is presented to the Council in order to remit attorney fees related to the 
the creation of the district. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 4 
 

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2800 
 

Ordinance Number 2800 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Amendment Of The Real Estate 
Purchase And Sale Agreement Dated May 15, 2018 And The Execution And 
Delivery Thereof    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2800 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this coincides with the next item on the agenda, Ordinance 
Number 2801.  Both have to do with the initial site package for construction at Wald Park.  He 
showed a diagram of both the proposed park project and commercial project located adjacent to 
Wald Park. 
 
 Mr. Downes and Ken Upchurch, TCU, discussed the original budgets for the projects and 
explained how some value engineering was done, within the bid package, in order to bring the 
project closer to budget.  Mr. Upchurch stated overall they feel the Council got great value by 
doing both projects at the same time and recommended approval. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that, because the site preparation contracts were not posted in the agenda 
packet until this morning, she was late in getting to review them. She noticed that there was a 
discrepancy between the sales agreement contract and site preparation contract liquidated 
damages penalty amounts, for late completion.  She thanked the City Manager for quickly 
obtaining agreement from the buyer (HCM) to reduce the City’s liquidated damages amount 
(from $2,500/day to $1,000/day) to match the amount in the City’s site preparation contract with 
Forestry Environmental ($1,000/day). She stated that she appreciates Mr. Henson for agreeing 
quickly with the last-minute change, and decreasing the City’s potential liability for late 
completion of the rough grade site preparation. 
 
 Mr. Weaver asked about the other opportunities for value engineering.  Mr. Upchurch 
explained. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 5 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2801 
 

Ordinance Number 2801 – An Ordinance Accepting A Bid For Wald Park Initial Site 
Package For The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, And Authorizing The 
Execution And Delivery Of The Construction Contract Documents By And 
Between The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, As “Owner,” And Forestry 
Environmental Services, Inc., As “Contractor  (public hearing)   

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2801 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this was explained with the previous item. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2789 
 

Ordinance Number 2789 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2441 Jannebo Road, Lot 116, 
Buckhead, 4th Sector; Richard And Samantha Wheeler (Owners)   (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2789 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is the 90-day annexation of this property which was 
annexed by the overnight method months ago. 
 
 Mr. Pierce gave the annexation report of the property which was annexed by overnight 
method a few months ago. 
 
 Mr. and Mrs. Wheeler were present in regard to this request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 6 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2790 
 

Ordinance Number 2790 – Rezoning - 2441 Jannebo Road, Lot 116, Buckhead, 4th Sector; 
Rezone From JC E-2 To VH R-1; Richard And Samantha Wheeler (Owners)   
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2790 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is the compatible zoning of the same property. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2791 
 

Ordinance Number 2791 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3332 Misty Lane; Jacob And; 
Marjorie Pollard (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2791 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is the 90-day annexation of this property which was 
annexed by the overnight method 3 months ago. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated there were originally some concerns with the right-of-way leading to the 
proposed home. 
 
 Mr. Brady explained that plans have been brought in for roadway improvements and 
proposed easements and are in the process of meeting their requirements. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2792 
 

Ordinance Number 2792 – Rezoning - 3332 Misty Lane; Rezone From JC E-2 To R-1; Jacob 
And; Marjorie Pollard (Owners)   (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 7 
 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2792 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is the compatible zoning of the same property. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2793 
 

Ordinance Number 2793 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2764 Altadena Lake Drive; ; Lot 4, 
Block 5, First Add, Altadena Valley, 4th Sector; Murray And Kelly Statham 
(Owners)   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2793 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 
 Mr. Pierce read the findings of the Annexation Committee and explained the purpose of 
the Annexation report. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is the 90-day annexation of this property which was 
annexed by the overnight method months ago. 
 
 Mr. and Mrs. Statham were present in regard to this request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2794 
 

Ordinance Number 2794 – Rezoning - 2764 Altadena Lake Drive; Lot 4, Block 5, First Add, 
Altadena Valley, 4th Sector Rezone From JC R-1 To VH R-2; Murray And 
Kelly Statham, (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2794 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 8 
 

 Mr. Weaver reported that all of these rezoning requests are compatible rezoning requests 
from Jefferson County to the closest and most compatible and all were unanimously 
recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is the compatible zoning of the same property. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2795 
 

Ordinance Number 2795 – Rezoning – 2401 Mountain Vista Drive, Lot 45, Altadena Brook; 
2nd Sector, Rezone From JC E-2 To VH R-1, Paul Phillips, Owner   (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2795 was by Mr. Pierce seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this is the compatible zoning of a property that was annexed 
several years ago but was never compatibly rezoned. 
 
 Paul Phillips, owner of the property, was present in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Bruington, 3675 Alta Crest Drive, asked the difference between the rezoning 
classifications. 
 
 Ms. Leavings explained the similarities and the differences but indicated that this is the 
closest and most compatible City zoning classification to the present Jefferson County 
classification. 
 
 France Knox, 3683 Alta Crest Drive, stated that she attended the Commission meeting to 
get information on this request.  She indicated that she cannot find any reason for this property 
owner to request a rezoning if the other properties are also under Jefferson County zoning.  She 
stated that the properties have private covenants that prevent subdividing the property and she 
cannot understand anyone would request rezoning. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained a 1955 Alabama statute that applies to counties such as Jefferson 
County and stated that if a City annexes property from unincorporated County it remains subject 
to that classification until such time as the city changes the zoning.  In 1986, the City annexed 
property and failed to rezone it and the developer came in with a building permit and was less 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 9 
 

than Vestavia’s zoning classification and was allowed to build under County zoning.  At that time, 
the City mandated that the closest and compatible zoning classification will be given to each 
property annexed. 
 
 Ralph Boykin, 3679 Alta Crest Drive West, stated that he is under Jefferson County and 
if he wants to do construction does that mean that he’s subject to County specifications? 
 
 Mr. Boone explained that is correct. 
 
 Ms. Leavings indicated that not all properties remain under Jefferson County zoning 
classifications as newer annexations are required to rezone. 
 
 There being no one, further, to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5092 
 

Resolution Number 5092 – A Resolution Accepting The Dedication Of The Street Known 
As Anna Steele Lane     (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5092 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 
 **Mr. Head stepped out of the meeting. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is a street in the new Steelemont Subdivision which has 
been completed and the developer is offering the street for dedication to the City.  Mr. Brady has 
inspected the street and recommends acceptance. 
 
 Mr. Brady concurred. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that means the final seal has been placed on the street and all construction 
is completed. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that is correct and that the developer will submit a bond with a one-year 
warranty. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 10 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5093 
 

Resolution Number 5093 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver Proposals For Survey And Civil Engineering Services For The 
Following Sidewalk Projects:  East Street Improvements; Cahaba Heights 
Road Sidewalk Improvements; Mountainview Drive Sidewalk 
Improvements; And Rocky Ridge Road Sidewalk Improvements   (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5093 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook. 
 
 **Mr. Head stepped back into the meeting. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that funding was appropriated for sidewalk design and 
construction in the Infrastructure and Community Spaces plan and these four areas were 
recognized as the first four projects for design. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that she visited many of her constituents along East Street last weekend 
and many didn’t realize that the City was concentrating on the sidewalk designs for this area. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is conceptual and surveys and designs have to be completed 
to see if this sidewalk plan can come to fruition. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2796 
 

Ordinance Number 2796 – An Ordinance Granting A Non-Exclusive Right-Of-Way Use 
Agreement To McImetro Access Transmission Services Corp. D/B/A Verizon 
Access Transmission Services For The Purpose Of Conducting Business As A 
Communications Services Provider Within Certain Public Right-Of-Way 
Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2796 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is the City’s standard procedure yielding 5% of gross receipts. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 11 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5098 
 

Resolution Number 5098 – Alcohol License – Martin’s BBQ Bham LLC D/B/A Martins 
BBQ Birmingham, 3029 Pump House Road, Suite 100 For 020-Restaurant 
Retail Liquor; John Michael Bodnar, Patrick Daniel Martina And Jerry 
Michael Bodnar, Executives  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5098 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained this is for a new restaurant and has been reviewed and 
recommended by the Police Department. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about training. 
 
 Daniel Mulroy, General Manager, stated that all employees go through the responsible 
vendor classes to learn how to spot underage patrons.  Trainers are brought in from out of state.  
He stated that he anticipates October 30 as an opening date. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, further, to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5099 
 

Resolution Number 5099 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose Of Said Property 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5099 was by Mrs. Cook seconded by Mr. 

Weaver. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is an older Dodge Durango which is no longer needed by the 
City. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 12 
 

 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5101 
 

Resolution Number 5101 – A Resolution To The Accept Schematic Of The Wald Park 
Component Of The City Of Vestavia Hills Community Spaces Plan 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5101 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is the beginning of the design process for the Wald Park 
component of the Community Spaces. He stated the various schematics will also be making their 
way to the Council so that the designs can be finalized and enter into the bid phase of each project. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes 
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor Pro-Tem stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on October 8, 2018, at 6:00 
PM. 

 Resolution Number 5094 – Annexation – 90 Day – 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, Block 
2, Coventry 1st And 2nd Sector; Barbara French, Owner  (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2797 – Annexation – Overnight – 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, Block 
2, Coventry 1st And 2nd Sector; Barbara French, Owner  (public hearing)   

 Resolution Number 5095 – Annexation – 90 Day – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 1, 
Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Alan and Patricia Foster, Owners   (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2798 – Annexation – Overnight – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 
1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Alan and Patricia Foster, Owners   (public hearing)   

 Resolution Number 5096 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 2, 
Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Jason and Laura Sparks, Owners    (public hearing)   

 Ordinance Number 2799 – Annexation – Overnight – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 
2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Jason and Laura Sparks, Owners    (public hearing)   

 Resolution Number 5097 – A Resolution Requesting The De-Annexation Of Property 
Located At 2961 Briar Oak Drive; Robert Butler, Owner, Frank Galloway, III, 
Representing   (public hearing)   



City Council Minutes 
September 24, 2018 

Page 13 
 

 Ordinance Number 2802 – An Ordinance Establishing The Cahaba Heights And City 
Center Entertainment Districts    (public hearing)   

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 Mr. Boone thanked everyone for the recognition and for allowing him to serve. 
 
 
 At 7:55 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:56 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5094 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5094 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated March 5, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 8th day of October, 2018; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

12th day of October, 2018. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of January, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5094 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5094 
Page 2 

 
3421 Coventry Drive, 

Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry 1st and 2nd Sector 
Barbara French, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 5094 
Page 3 

 

 



3421 Coventry Drive



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

3421 Coventry Drive

Barbara French

8.29.18

$360,000

3421 Coventry Drive

16

18



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

3421 Coventry Drive

0 children
not applicable

Kimberly B. Cook
Acting Chair

3421 Coventry Drive



Ad	Valorem	Tax	Calculation:	
3421	Coventry	Drive

AD	VALOREM	TAX	RATES
Millage	Multiplier

0.02055 Ad	valorem	to	City	General	Fund: 20.55	mills
0.02875 City	BOE	portion: 28.75	mills
0.0151 District	20	School: 15.1	mills
0.0082 Countywide	School: 8.2	mills
0.05205 Ad	valorem	to	Schools	(TOTAL): 52.05	mills

ASSESSED	VALUE
Description Citizen	Access	Portal	Descriptor

																																																															360,000	 Total	Value	of	Property TOTAL	MARKET	VALUE

0.1
Assessment	rate	(10%	or	.1	for	
homesteaders) EXEMPT	CODE:	2-2

																																																																							36,000	 Assessed	Value ASSD.	VALUE

	AD	VALOREM	REVENUE	
739.8 City	portion	of	ad	valorem 20.55 (Subset	of	CITY)

																																																																				1,035.00	 BOE	portion	of	ad	valorem 28.75 (Subset	of	CITY)

																																																																				1,774.80	
Total	County	remits	to	City	for	split	with	
BOE CITY

543.60
SPC	DIST1	BOE	local	rev	(County	gives	
directly	to	BOE) (15.1	mills	rate) SPC	SCHOOL1

295.20 Countywide	School	Tax	to	VH (8.2	mills	rate) SCHOOL

ANNEXATION	AD	VALOREM	REVENUE
																																																																	739.80	Annexation	Revenue	to	CITY (20.55	mills) CITY	(General	Fund	portion)

																																																																				1,873.80	 Annexation	Revenue	to	BOE (8.2	mills	+	15.1	mills	+	28.75	mills)
SCHOOL	+	SPC	SCHOOL1	+	CITY	(BOE	
portion)

																																																																				2,613.60	 TOTAL	ANNEXATION	REVENUE	BENEFIT

City	Revenue
BOE	Revenue



3421 Coventry Drive



3421 Coventry Drive



3421 Coventry Drive



3421 Coventry Drive



3421 Coventry Drive



Ordinance Number 2797 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2797 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Barbara French dated March 5, 

2018, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
3421 Coventry Drive, 

Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry 1st and 2nd Sector 
Barbara French 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2797 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2797 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 8th day of October, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2797 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5095 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5095 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated April 4, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 8th day of October, 2018; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

12th day of October, 2018. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of January, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5095 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5095 
Page 2 

 
3531 Valley Circle 

Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 
Alan and Patricia Foster, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 5095 
Page 3 

 

 
 



3531 Valley Circle



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

3531 Valley Circle

Alan and Patricia Foster

8.29.18

$205,700

3531 Valley Circle



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

3531 Valley Circle

0 children
not applicable

Kimberly B. Cook
Acting Chair

Nothing significant

3531 Valley Circle



Ad	Valorem	Tax	Calculator	for	Rental	Property	Home	in	Vestavia	Hills

AD	VALOREM	TAX	RATES
Millage	Multiplier

0.02055 Ad	valorem	to	City	General	Fund: 20.55	mills
0.02875 City	BOE	portion: 28.75	mills
0.0151 District	20	School: 15.1	mills
0.0082 Countywide	School: 8.2	mills
0.05205 Ad	valorem	to	Schools	(TOTAL): 52.05	mills

ASSESSED	VALUE

Description
Citizen	Access	Portal	
Descriptor

																																																										207,500	 Total	Value	of	Property TOTAL	MARKET	VALUE

0.2
Assessment	rate	(20%	or	.1	for	non-
homesteaders) EXEMPT	CODE

																																																													41,500	 Assessed	Value ASSD.	VALUE

	AD	VALOREM	REVENUE	
852.825 City	portion	of	ad	valorem 20.55 (Subset	of	CITY)

																																																									1,193.13	 BOE	portion	of	ad	valorem 28.75 (Subset	of	CITY)

																																																									2,045.95	
Total	County	remits	to	City	for	split	
with	BOE CITY

626.65
SPC	DIST1	BOE	local	rev	(County	gives	
directly	to	BOE) (15.1	mills	rate) SPC	SCHOOL1

340.30 Countywide	School	Tax	to	VH (8.2	mills	rate) SCHOOL

ANNEXATION	AD	VALOREM	REVENUE
852.825 Annexation	Revenue	to	CITY (20.55	mills) CITY	(General	Fund	portion)

																																																									2,160.08	 Annexation	Revenue	to	BOE (8.2	mills	+	15.1	mills	+	28.75	mills)
SCHOOL	+	SPC	SCHOOL1	+	
CITY	(BOE	portion)

																																																									3,012.90	 TOTAL	ANNEXATION	REVENUE	BENEFIT

City	Revenue
BOE	Revenue



3531 Valley Circle



3531 Valley Circle



3531 Valley Circle



3531 Valley Circle



3531 Valley Circle



3531 Valley Circle



Ordinance Number 2798 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2798 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Alan and Patricia Foster dated 

April 4, 2018, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
3531 Valley Circle 

Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 
Alan and Patricia Foster 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2798 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2798 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 8th day of October, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2798 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5096 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5096 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated April 9, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 8th day of October, 2018; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

12th day of October, 2018. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of January, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5096 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5096 
Page 2 

 
2532 Skyland Drive 

Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 
Jason and Laura Sparks, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 5096 
Page 3 

 

 





 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

2532 Skyland Drive

Jason Sparks

8.29.18

See Engineering Report.

$204,600
Though this property falls short of the City’s median property value, similar, 
adjacent properties have sold recently in the median range.

13 5

2532 Skyland Drive

$211,100



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

2532 Skyland Drive

See Engineering department report of concerns regarding storm drain pipe. City Engineer stated Jefferson County is 
willing to partner with the City to replace the public pipe. Property owner acknowledged he was aware the private pipe 
would need to be repaired at the same time as the public pipe repair. The City Engineer said this is not currently causing a 
problem, but would need to be fixed. Committee recommends the pipe repair would be a contingency of the annexation.

1 child

Kimberly Cook, Acting Chairman

2532 Skyland Drive



Ad	Valorem	Tax	Calculation:	
2532	Skyland	Drive

AD	VALOREM	TAX	RATES
Millage	Multiplier

0.02055 Ad	valorem	to	City	General	Fund: 20.55	mills
0.02875 City	BOE	portion: 28.75	mills
0.0151 District	20	School: 15.1	mills
0.0082 Countywide	School: 8.2	mills
0.05205 Ad	valorem	to	Schools	(TOTAL): 52.05	mills

ASSESSED	VALUE
Description Citizen	Access	Portal	Descriptor

																																																															211,100	 Total	Value	of	Property TOTAL	MARKET	VALUE

0.1
Assessment	rate	(10%	or	.1	for	
homesteaders) EXEMPT	CODE:	2-2

																																																																							21,110	 Assessed	Value ASSD.	VALUE

	AD	VALOREM	REVENUE	
433.8105 City	portion	of	ad	valorem 20.55 (Subset	of	CITY)

																																																																							606.91	 BOE	portion	of	ad	valorem 28.75 (Subset	of	CITY)

																																																																				1,040.72	
Total	County	remits	to	City	for	split	with	
BOE CITY

318.76
SPC	DIST1	BOE	local	rev	(County	gives	
directly	to	BOE) (15.1	mills	rate) SPC	SCHOOL1

173.10 Countywide	School	Tax	to	VH (8.2	mills	rate) SCHOOL

ANNEXATION	AD	VALOREM	REVENUE

433.8105 Annexation	Revenue	to	CITY (20.55	mills) CITY	(General	Fund	portion)

																																																																				1,098.78	 Annexation	Revenue	to	BOE (8.2	mills	+	15.1	mills	+	28.75	mills)
SCHOOL	+	SPC	SCHOOL1	+	CITY	(BOE	
portion)

																																																																				1,532.59	 TOTAL	ANNEXATION	REVENUE	BENEFIT

City	Revenue
BOE	Revenue



2532 Skyland Drive



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Christopher Brady
Sent: Thursday, August 23, 2018 12:08 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings; George Pierce
Cc: Jeff Downes
Subject: RE: Annexation Committee Agenda
Attachments: 2532 Skyland Drive_survey markup.pdf; skyland_pics.pdf

Fyi 
I wanted to provide an update on 2532 Skyland… 
 
I met Wed, 8/22, with Mr. Sparks to discuss drainage pipe concerns on his property and within the roadway at the front 
of this property.  I have also initiated discussions with Jefferson County, but have not yet received input from their 
review. 
 
The attached sketch and pictures provide an overview of the rusted drainage pipe.  There is approximately 100 LF of 30” 
pipe on his property that has substantially deteriorated; the bottom of the pipe is mostly rusted away.  The pipe within 
the roadway right‐of‐way, approximately 60 LF of 30” pipe, and another 35 LF of 15”, has little to no bottom remaining.  
 
There are no surface concerns evident yet; no sinkholes or subsidence in the roadway.  Mr. Sparks’ driveway has settling 
and cracking, but no visible hazard or immediate concerns. 
 
The property across the street, as well as numerous neighboring properties, are already within the City, so there is pre‐
existing City maintenance in this area.  However, this was not a previously identified pipe replacement project. 
 
Mr.Sparks’ family has owned the property for 10+ years and claims to have not noted any issues in past.  His mom also 
met with us on site and provided additional background on the property and noting improvements they have done to 
the property since owning. 
 
Mr. Sparks stated a willingness to consider investing in improvements, and is awaiting additional guidance from the City 
and/or County.  He intends to attend the Committee meeting on 29th and address this concern in any discussion as 
needed. 
 

 
 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Department of Public Services 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 
City of Vestavia Hills 

   
 

2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



 

 

 

2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



2532 Skyland Drive



Ordinance Number 2799 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2799 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Jason and Laura Sparks dated 

April 9, 2018, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2532 Skyland Drive 

Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 
Jason and Laura Sparks 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2799 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2799 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 8th day of October, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2018. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2799 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5097 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5097 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO REDUCE THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AND THE 
BOUNDARIES THEREOF REESTABLISHED 

 
WHEREAS, Robert Butler is the owner of property located at 3961 Briar Oak 

Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, Robert Butler’s property (“hereinafter known as “The Property”) lies 

within the corporate limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, said portion is illustrated and more 

particularly described in a map and legal description marked as Exhibit A attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 5097 as though written fully therein; and  

WHEREAS, Frank C. Galloway, III, Esq. on behalf of Robert Butler has filed a 

petition with the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills requesting de-annexation of 

The Property that lies within the City of Vestavia Hills corporate limits, a copy of which is 

marked as Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5097 as 

though written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council agree it is in the best public interest to grant 

Robert Butler’s request determining that The Property described in Exhibit A located on 

Liberty Parkway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama is of no benefit to the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1.  This action is taken pursuant to the authority set forth in Title 11-42-200, et. 

seq., Code of Alabama, 1975; and 

 2.  That petition signed by Frank C. Galloway, III, Esq. on behalf of Robert Butler, 

represents as owner of The Property; and 

 3.  The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, has determined and 

decided that the public good requires that the request of Robert Butler is due to be granted; 

and 

 4.  That the legal description of the property to be de-annexed is described as 

follows: 

3961 Briar Oak Drive 
Robert Butler, owner 

More particularly described as follows:  (see attached legal description in Exhibit A). 



Resolution Number 5097 
Page 2 

 5.  The property owned by Robert Butler located in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described in Exhibit A above and Exhibit B 

attached is hereby de-annexed from the corporate city limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama. 

 6.  The corporate limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, are hereby reduced 

so as to exclude the territory described in Exhibit A above and the boundaries of the City 

are hereby re-established accordingly. 

 7.  That pursuant to Section 11-42-201 of the Code of Alabama, 1975, the Clerk 

shall certify a copy of such Resolution, together with a plat or map correctly defining the 

corporate limits proposed to be established and the names of all qualified electors residing 

in the territory proposed to be excluded from the area of such corporation and file the same 

with the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of October, 

2018. 

 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Resolution 5097 is a true and 
correct copy of such Resolution that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 8th day of October, 2018, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5097 
Page 4 

 

Vestavia Hills 0 
11/buntain Brook 0 



Legal Description of 3961 Briar Oak Drive: 

 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution 5097



Annexation Review Committee
De-annexation Petition Review

 
Property Address: ________________________________________________________
 
Owner Name(s): ________________________________________________________


Review Date: _______________________

 
1. Year subject property was annexed (if known):  __________

 
2. Are any adjacent properties in the City of Vestavia Hills?   Yes _______    No ________
 
3. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations and

building codes and in good condition.
Yes _______    No ________    Comments: ___________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
 

4. Jefferson/Shelby County Tax Assessor total property value:_______________________
• Most recent City Schools tax collected on property: _______________________
• Most recent City tax collected on property: ______________________________

 
5. Property owner reasons for requesting de-annexation:

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________

 
6. Are there any de-annexation benefits cited by City departments or Board of Education?

_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
 

7. Are there any other considerations that might affect evaluation of this petition?
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________
 
 
 
 
______________________________
George Pierce
Chairman

3961  Briar Oak Drive

Robert Butler

8.29.18

Property owner has an interested buyer, contingent on property being annexed into Mountain Brook.

no

no

Kimberly B. Cook
Acting Chair

~$4919.55
~$1055.02

$964,300
$5,019
$7,001XXXXXX

XXXXXX





Exhibit B - Resolution No. 5097

STATEMENT OF ROBERT BUTLER 

COMES NOW the undersigned, Robert Butler, and hereby states the following: 

I am over nineteen (19) years of age, a resident of Jefferson County, Alabama and 
have personal knowledge of the facts set forth herein. 

I am the current owner of 3961 Briar Oak Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35243 (the 
11 Property"). Frank C. Galloway Ill, Esq. filed a petition to de-annex the Property on my behalf 

and with my permission. I authorize Scott Brown, Esq. to represent me in the de-annexation 

process. 

Robert Butler 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

I, the undersigned notary for said County and in said State, hereby certify that 

Robert Butler, whose name is signed to the foregoing instrument and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of said instrument, he 

executed the same voluntarily for the purposes set forth therein. 

+L-
Given under my official hand and seal this the~ day of August, 2018August, 

2018. 

Notary Public . 

My Commission Expires: ¥ { ~ 



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 5097

- Galloway Scott Moss & Hancock LLC 
Attorneys at Law 

August 7, 2018 

Via Hand Delivery 

Mr. Jeffrey Downes, City Manager 
City of Vestavia Hills 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

Re: Proposed deannexation of home located at 3961 Briar Oak Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
35243 

Dear Jeff: 

As we briefly discussed last week, on behalf of the current owner (Robert Butler) and my cl ients, 
contract purchasers (Mr. and Mrs. Patrick Maguire), please consider this letter and its enclosures 
to be a request that the City of Vestavia Hills deannex the above-referenced property (the 
"Property"). To that end, I ask that the Council place this matter on a track so t hat it is formally 
considered at a Council meeting. 

In support of this proposal, I offer the following: 

1. A tax map from the Jefferson County Tax Assessor's office identifying the property (Exhibit 
1). 

2. A print-out from the Jefferson County website showing an aerial depiction ofthe Property. 
It is noteworthy that in this depiction Jefferson County erroneously shows that a material 
portion of the perimeter of the Property is in Mountain Brook (Exhibit 2) . 

3. A print-out from the 2018 Courthouse Retrieval System depicting the Property and the 
surrounding area (Exhibit 3). 

4. A print-out from the Jefferson County Tax Assessor's office showing the Property as (a) 
being located in Birmingham, (b) having a Mountain Brook address, and (c) a Vestavia Hills 
"municipal code". 

5. As shown on Exhibits 1 and 3, the Property is the last house on a dead-end segment of 
Bria r Oak Drive. All other properties and houses on Briar Oak Drive are located in the City 
of Mountain Brook. Additionally, there are eight (8) other parcels th at border the Property, 
and all of them are in the City of Mountain Brook. 

2200 Woodc rest Place Sui te 310 B irm ingham AL 35209 Te lephone: 205.949.5580 Facsimile : 205.949.5581 

\ 



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 5097

Mr. Jeffrey Downes, City Manager 
City of Vestavia Hills 

August 7, 2018 
Page 2 

6. The easternmost border of the Property is the Cahaba River. On the opposite bank of the 
Cahaba River is land located in the City of Vestavia Hills. Realistically, this contiguous 
border affords no meaningful access to other Vestavia Hills property, and certainly provides 
no access for emergency vehicles. 

7. The Property is the only Vestavia Hills property accessed off of Overton Road via River Oaks 
Road. There is obviously confusion in the public realm as to the Property's correct 
jurisdiction. This isolation creates inherent challenges for police, fire and ambulance 
services from Vestavia Hills to access the Property. It is not unlikely that in an emergency 

situation, resources from Vestavia Hills, Mountain Brook and perhaps Birmingham would 
respond and thus potentially compromise the ability of one of the municipalities to 
properly service their communities. 

8. If deannexation of the Property is approved, it realistically could not be finalized until after 

October 1, 2018. Thus, the property taxes owing for the 2019 tax year would be paid to 
Vestavia Hills. 

The Maguires' contract to purchase the Property is contingent on deannexation, so both Mr. Butler 
and the Maguires request that Vestavia Hills consid er thi s matter in a timely fashion . Thank you 
in advance for your consideration of the foregoing request. If there is any application fee or other 
requirement that a payment be made in order for Vestavia Hills to consider a deannexation 
request, please let me know and my office will promptly forward such payment to your office. 

Sincerely, 

·1 ~ 
Fra1 . Galloway 1nJ-
FCGIII/jjg 
Enclosures 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5097



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5097



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5097



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5097



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5097









Ordinance Number 2802 
Page 1 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2802 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE CAHABA HEIGHTS AND CITY 
CENTER ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICTS 
 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Act 2012-438 as amended by Act 2013-382 now appearing as Section 28-

3A-17.1, Code of Alabama, 1975, authorized certain municipalities in the State of Alabama to 

establish entertainment districts within its corporate limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Alabama enacted Act No. 2015-267, which 

became law on May 27, 2015, to authorize the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama to establish no 

more than three (3) entertainment districts within the corporate City limits; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and provisions and conditions of Act No. 2015-267, 

the Rocky Ridge Entertainment District was established through Ordinance 2600; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and provisions and conditions of Act No. 2015-267, 

the City Council wishes to establish additional entertainment districts for the purpose of 

regulating the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages as provided herein below.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Under the authority granted in Section 1 of Act No. 2015-267 of the 

Alabama Legislature, there shall be hereby established the Cahaba Heights Entertainment 

District with the areas and boundaries as set forth and designated in Exhibit A.  

SECTION 2.  Under the authority granted in Section 1 of Act No. 2015-267 of the 

Alabama Legislature, there shall be hereby established the City Center Entertainment District 

with the areas and boundaries as set forth and designated in Exhibit B.  



Ordinance Number 2802 
Page 2 

SECTION 3.  Any licensee who receives an entertainment district designation for an on- 

premise retail license from the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Board shall comply with all 

laws, rules, and regulations which govern its license type, except that the patrons, guests or 

members of that licensee may exit that licensed premises with open containers of alcoholic 

beverages and consume alcoholic beverages anywhere within the confines of the entertainment 

district but may not enter another licensed premises with open containers or closed containers of 

alcoholic beverages acquired elsewhere.  

SECTION 4.  No licensee who receives an entertainment district designation shall allow 

alcoholic beverages to be removed from the licensed premises in bottles or glass containers. 

SECTION 5.  Except for special events as permitted by the Alabama Alcoholic Beverage 

Control Board and in compliance with all laws, rules, and regulations, no alcoholic beverages 

purchased outside of the district shall be allowed in open containers in the Entertainment 

District. 

SECTION 6.  Alcoholic beverages may be sold at licensed premises and consumed 

within the entertainment district designation boundaries during the following days and hours: 

Sunday through Thursday from Noon to 9:00 PM 

Friday and Saturday from Noon to 11:00 PM 

*The City Manager may, at his discretion issue a waiver to these posted hours. 

 

SECTION 7.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage, approval and 

publication or as otherwise required by Alabama law.. 

  

 



Ordinance Number 2802 
Page 3 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 8th day of October, 2018. 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY:    

 

 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2802 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 8th day of October, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 

 
Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Public Library, Vestavia Hills New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ___day of ____________, 2018. 
 
 
 
     Rebecca Leavings 
     City Clerk 







RESOLUTION NUMBER 5102 
 

A RESOLUTION RESCHEDULING REGULAR MEETINGS AND/OR 
WORK SESSIONS OF THE VESTAVIA HILLS CITY COUNCIL 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The regularly scheduled meeting of the Vestavia Hills City Council scheduled for 

November 12, 2018 is hereby rescheduled for Tuesday, November 13, 2018 beginning at 

6 PM on observance of the Veteran’s Day holiday; and 

2. The regularly scheduled meeting of the Vestavia Hills City Council scheduled for 

December 24, 2018 is hereby rescheduled for Monday, December 17, 2018 beginning at 6 

PM in observance of the Christmas Eve holiday; and 

3. The regularly scheduled work session of the Vestavia Hills City Council scheduled for 

December 17, 2018 at 6 PM is hereby rescheduled for Monday, December 17, 2018 

beginning at 5 PM; and 

4. This Resolution Number 5102 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5103 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR FOR THE SICARD HOLLOW PARK 
PROJECT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a Project Agreement with 

the State of Alabama Department of Labor for the Sicard Hollow Park Project; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as Exhibit A and is attached to and incorporated into 

this Resolution Number 5103 as if written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5103 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit 5103



Exhibit 5103



Exhibit 5103



Exhibit 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
  
Form Completed By:  Melissa N. Hipp 

Primary ADOL AML Project Contact:  Jeffrey Downes, City Manager 

AML Pilot Project Name:  Sicard Hollow Road AML Reclamation Pilot Project 

Problem Area Number and Name:  >>> (previously reclaimed) 

Project Number(s):  TBD 

Municipality:  Vestavia Hills      

County:  Jefferson 

Primary Project Partner(s):  City of Vestavia Hills 

Project Description:  

The abandoned mine property located at Sicard Hollow Road in Vestavia Hills, Alabama has been made into 

recreational space by the City of Vestavia Hills. As such, its value towards revenue generation is in the ability 

to attract visitors, businesses, and residents to the park amenity.  Prior to AML program assistance in 2013, the 

City had developed soccer facilities there and named the site the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex.  With the 

assistance received, the City was able to add some passive recreational features to the park, which now includes 

trails, a playground, a splash pad, and a pavilion.  Additional assistance is sought to continue improvements to 

the park in a way that would promote private investment in the area surrounding the site.  Improvements  

proposed for the SHAC site include  1) addition of a turn lane into the park, 2) expanded and improved parking, 

3) addition of an amphitheater  4) installation of a second pavilion, 5) public wi-fi access, and 6) addition of a 

multi-purpose athletic court .  These improvements will broaden the types of events which may be held at the 

park, increase capacity for attendance, and alleviate traffic concerns related to park events.   Please see Exhibits 

A and B  for project budget and further description. 

 

While there has been some interest expressed by private investors, most of the growth thus far has been in 

residential rather than commercial development.  It is hoped that as the SHAC is increasingly viewed by the 

public as a park destination and a venue, that private investors will respond by locating restaurant, retail and 

lodging in the area.  The City also hopes to attract multiple corporate headquarters there.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
Total Estimated Project Cost: $1,000,000 

OSMRE AML Pilot Program Guidelines Category? (A, B, or Both A and B)  

    A (Reclamation with Development) 

Proposed AML Pilot Funding Amount:  $1,000,000 

Eligible for Title IV AML Funds or AMD Set-Aside Funds? (Y or N)  Yes 

If Yes: Why fund this as a Pilot Program project versus just a straight AML or AMD funded 

project? Title IV only as the main purpose will be to continue with economic and community 

development by making improvements to an already reclaimed abandoned mine site.  The quality of life 

improvements to be made by the City are intended to draw commercial investments which will be 

accompanied by sidewalks and other infrastructure improvements and improved access to amenities.   

Is there any ongoing O&M funding requirement? (Y or N)  No 

      If Yes: What is the estimated annual O&M cost and source of that funding? 

For projects needing funding from the AMD Set-Aside Fund for construction or ongoing O&M,              
identify the watershed the site is located in and whether the site is located in an approved QHU or 
not? N/A 
 

Other Project Funding Source(s) Including Title IV and/or AMD Set-Aside (Amount and Status):  

AML PILOT- SHAC PH III Proposed Project Funding and Leveraging 

Investment AML Funds 

(Title IV) 

Local/Othe

r Non-

Federal 

Funds 

Non-AML 

Federal 

Funds  

Amount 

SHAC Phase III 

1) addition of a right turn lane into the SHAC park 

$360,000   $360,000 

2) expanded and improved parking (100 additional spots) $95,000   $95,000 

3) addition of an amphitheater (300 persons, covered stage)  $300,000   $300,000 

4) installation of a second pavilion (50 persons) $50,000   $50,000 

5) public wi-fi access $75,000   $75,000 

6) addition of a multi-purpose athletic court $120,000   $120,000 

     

Pedestrian tunnel (Separate project- Federal TAP project to 
connect SHAC with Liberty Park Sports Complex) non-
allowed expenses not included in local share – preliminary 
engineering.  (Local share is $94, 742) 

 $50,000 

 

$378,966 $525,000 

Proposed Community Spaces Plan investments in the 
adjacent Liberty Park Sports Complex (located directly across 
from the SHAC, on the west side of Sicard Hollow Rd)  

 $50,000  $500,000 

TOTAL Current Proposed Investments in Reclamation Area $1,000,000 $100,000   

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
 

This project also builds on the following prior investments in the area of the project location: 

a. $750,000  (2013) Abandoned Mine Reclamation funding that allowed for Phase II recreational 

development at Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex.  The Alabama Dept. of Labor’s AML project to 

backfill “high walls” and other holes made the property ready for the City of Vestavia Hills to 

construct trails, a playground, a pavilion, and a splash pad.   

b. $1,289,633 (summer 2017) SHAC Phase II (completed) improvements performed by the City 

following the AML project.  Phase II of the master plan included trails, a playground, splash pad, 

and a pavilion.  Of the $1.29 M cost for Phase II, the City’s investment was $599,000 and the 

remaining $690,633 was from private donations through the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation 

Foundation.  (Exhibits C and D) 

 

Will the Project be an In-house Project Design or Pass-Through Grant?  No.  The Alabama Dept. of Labor 

is the grantee/applicant, and The City of Vestavia Hills will as “contractor” be the beneficiary of the Alabama 

AML Program under this proposal.  Vendors hired by the City of Vestavia Hills to perform the work will be 

regarded as subcontractors for the project.  

 

Anticipated Project Start and Completion Date:  

 Design phase of the project to begin immediately upon funding availability; construction anticipated to begin 

within six months of design completion.  Each of the components are expected to have a construction period of 

three to six months.  If funds are awarded summer of 2018, then project completion may be anticipated by 

spring/summer of 2021.   

 

 

Current Project Status:  Proposed project activities (all located at the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex) are in 

the planning stages and have not yet been designed: 

 Right turn lane entry to the SHAC 

 Amphitheater for 300 and covered stage 

 Pavilion for 50 persons 

 Parking improvements with 100 additional spots 

 Public wi-fi access  

 Multi-purpose athletic court 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
 Summary of any Significant Project Issues:  None known to date, except for requirements to coordinate the 

turn lane improvements with Jefferson County Roads and Transportation.  

 

How likely are the project partners to complete any work required beyond the reclamation / AMD 
Abatement project work?  The City of Vestavia Hills is committed to pursuing viable economic development 
opportunities in the location of the project.  Preliminary conversations have been had with multiple private 
developers interested in locating complementary projects such as hotels and restaurants in the area.  Further 
development of transportation amenities and other features of the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex) SHAC is 
expected to promote willingness of the private partners to continue to invest in the area.  See Exhibit F for a 
map and summary of potential commercial investments being considered.  
 
Presently the City Council is in the process of approving the scope of its Community Spaces Program, which is 
a comprehensive plan for improving the recreational and “community” spaces of Vestavia Hills.  Included in 
the proposed project scope are a number of improvements at the Liberty Park Sports Complex which is across 
the road from and soon to be connected by a tunnel to SHAC.   
 

Project Proposed End Use for Economic Revitalization and/or Community Development: 

The productive value of the SHAC property towards revenue generation is in the ability to attract visitors, 
businesses, and residents to the park amenity.  The proposed improvements will enable the City to incorporate 
entertainment events at the SHAC, will add to the parking capacity for events held there, and will alleviate area 
concerns related to traffic during events.  These factors will promote the SHAC as venue, and this is anticipated 
to create a demand for restaurant, retail, and hotel amenities.   
 

Long-Term Benefits to the Local Economy and/or Community Revitalization/Development (Refer to the 
OSMRE AML Pilot Program Guidance Section III. ‘Economic and Community Development Nexus’ for 

example metrics for the benefits): 
 
1,000+  Jobs created (based on current interest expressed in this location; see Exhibit F) 
110+ (8-10 new anticipated plus100+ existing)  Businesses created, served, or improved 
LF of Infrastructure – turn lane to assist 3K weekly visitors to leave main stream of traffic to enter park 
Increased/enhanced infrastructure system capacity of 100 parking spaces and Wi-Fi access 
Communities served or improved  (see Exhibit G) 
1600 current plus 1400 future (over next 15 years) Households served or improved  (see Exhibit G) 
3,000 estimated visitors/week served.  This estimate is based off the current estimated volume of visits.  We 
anticipate the proposed improvements will increase this figure.  
 
 
EXHIBITS 

A. Project Budget 
B. Conceptual Drawings and Descriptions 
C. VHPRF Video featuring the SHAC 
D. SHAC Master Plan (Revised March 2015) 
E. Community Spaces Plan  
F. SHAC Surrounding Area Commercial Potential 
G. Communities Served by the SHAC 

 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
Project Budget: 
 

Component Design Construction Total 

Turn Lane $60,000  $300,000  $360,000  

Parking 
Improvements 

$20,000  $75,000  $95,000  

Amphitheater $50,000  $250,000  $300,000  

Pavilion Prefab $50,000  $50,000  

Broadband/Wi-Fi $0    $75,000  

Multi-Purpose 
Athletic Court 

$20,000  $100,000  $120,000 

    Project total $1,000,000  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
EXHIBIT B 

Descriptions and Conceptual Drawings (Sicard Hollow Road IV) 
 

I. Turn Lane  
Presently an estimated 3,000 visitors per week travel the two-lane Sicard Hollow Road to reach the 
Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex, with others traveling the same to reach the Liberty Park Sports 
Complex, which is across the road.  Sicard Hollow Road connects Cahaba Heights and the commercial 
areas of The Summit and the Colonnade to Grants Mill Road and US 119.  Addition of a turn lane into 
the park will not only facilitate easier access for visitors to the park, but it will also help park traffic to 
clear the road more quickly; this will be important for traffic flow as the volume of commercial traffic 
increases.  
 

II. Parking Improvements 
Currently at the SHAC there are approximately 270 paved marked plus an unmarked graveled lot with 
space for around 180-200 vehicles.  Ground for almost 100 additional spaces has been set aside in the 
2015 revised concept for the master plan, and those spaces will be needed as the amphitheater is built.  
Although the graveled lot should be enough for the present parking needs, it becomes insufficient due to 
random parking, and there is no effective traffic flow.  Reconfiguring and expanding these parking lots 
with use of environmentally friendly low-impact designs will accommodate the long-term viability of 
parking access at the SHAC.  
 

III. Amphitheater 
An amphitheater has long been a desire of the Vestavia Hills community, and the SHAC is an ideal 
location for a small amphitheater that could serve park events and be a venue in the community.  The 
proposed amphitheater would have a capacity of around 300 persons, be ADA accessible, and would 
have a low-impact design consistent with maximizing green space.  The amphitheater seating would 
open to face a covered stage.  The residents and businesses of Vestavia Hills have already proven highly 
supportive of movies-in-the-park and live music at community events.  As new residents and businesses 
move into the area surrounding the SHAC, the amphitheater would provide a great opportunity for them 
to connect to the culture of the community and to their neighbors who are drawn to the events there.  
  

IV. Pavilion 
The need for a second and larger pavilion at the SHAC has become apparent as the City has received 
many requests for the pavilion recently installed as part of SHAC Phase II.  The City would like to install 
a prefabricated shelter that can accommodate approximately 50 persons.   
 

V. Wi-Fi 
As the City asked for feedback about what improvements are needed at its recreational facilities, a 
resounding theme was the need for Wi-Fi at the parks.  The City has suitable spaces for three corporate 
headquarters in addition to several other commercial sites (see Exhibit F), and the ability to stay 
connected while watching soccer practice or participating in other recreational opportunities could serve 
as a factor for the potential businesses seeking to locate where they can find high quality of life for their 
families, their employees, and themselves. AML assistance is needed to put in infrastructure to make wi-
fi available, and the City will provide continued service.  
 

VI. Multi-Purpose Athletic Court 
Recent studies of the utilization of the City’s athletic fields have shown that there is a deficit of 

rectangular fields relative to the demand.  The City would like to add a multi-purpose athletic court that 
could serve the soccer, lacrosse, fusbol, and other sports requiring a rectangular playing surface. The 
additional court would be particularly helpful as participants in the increasingly popular fusbol are 
presently challenged to find locations to play.  

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 
VHPRF Video Featuring the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex 
 

 
 
DVD attached.  You may also watch this video at http://vhprf.org/capital-campaign/.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 

EXHIBIT D 

SHAC Phase II Summary 

[INSERT SHAC MASTER PLAN HERE] 

[INSERT PHASE II SUMMARY HERE] 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
EXHIBIT E 

 
Community Spaces Plan     
 
The Community Spaces Plan which has been proposed by the program manager and is currently under 
consideration includes improvements to the Liberty Park Sports Complex (LPSC), which is in the immediate 
vicinity of the reclaimed area, directly across from the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (SHAC) which is the 
subject of this proposal.  This proposal expresses the LPSC improvements as well as the pedestrian tunnel 
connecting LPSC with the SHAC as leverage to the AML economic development pilot program proposal.   

 
The current proposal for the LPSC under the 

Community Spaces Plan includes $2,538,401 of 
improvements which would include a Miracle Field, 
playground, dog park, renovated concession stands, 
reconfigured ball fields, and parking and drainage 
improvements.  The SHAC PH III Proposed Project 
Funding and Leveraging table (page 3 of 
application) represents leveraged funds of $50,000 
as it is unknown how much of the $2.5M will be 
funded directly by the City.  The improvements are 
projected to be completed by late summer of 2020.  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
EXHIBIT F 

 
SHAC Surrounding Area Commercial Potential 
 
Drummond Company recently unveiled its plans to develop 700 acres into residential lots including a village 
concept at Liberty Park, and over the next fifteen years there will be two new neighborhoods of a total 1600 
new residences.  Complementing that, the City has been in conversation with several investors considering 
locating businesses in the area.  The jobs creation summary below includes one corporate headquarters, but it is 
worth noting that Vestavia Hills has three suitable headquarters sites at Liberty Park.  HealthSouth recently 
located its headquarters at Liberty Park within Birmingham’s jurisdiction, and this serves as an example of how 

attracting businesses to the location benefits not only Vestavia Hills, but other local governments.  A description 
of surrounding communities is provided in Exhibit G.  
 

Jobs Created (Estimate) Business Description Status  
750 Corporate HQ, 50k sq ft Interest 
55 Grocer Retail Anchor 60k sq ft, $24M ann sales Interest 
20 Drug Store 5k sq ft, $2M ann sales Interest 
25 Sports Bar 2k sq ft, $1.5M ann sales Interest 
20 Senior Living Facility Interest 
15 Convenience Store, 2k sq ft $850K ann sales Interest 
25 Restaurant TBD Targeting 

200 Hotel TBD Targeting 
15 Retail TBD Targeting 

1125 Estimated Jobs Created  
 
Sites A-D are locations on the map below are sites being considered for the potential new businesses described 
in the table above.  
 

 
 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR ABANDONED MINE LAND PROGRAM 
Proposed 2017 AML Pilot Program Project Request Form 

 
 

EXHIBIT G 
 
Communities Served by the SHAC 
 
 
 
The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex 
(SHAC) is a public recreational facility of 
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  The 
SHAC is nationally recognized and has 
hosted tournaments with teams visiting from 
across the southeast.  The SHAC is also the 
practice location for the regions semi-
professional soccer team, the Birmingham 
Hammers. Recent events including new 
residential and commercial developments 
and the completion of Phase II of the park 
have increased its utilization and expanded 
the scope of the community it serves, as described below. 
 
The SHAC is situated on Sicard Hollow Road in Jefferson County, Alabama across from the Liberty Park Sports 
Complex and the Liberty Park community of Vestavia Hills.  Liberty Park, which is located near I-459 and US 280, 
has been developed over legacy mine property owned by the Drummond Corporation.  The area annexed into the 
City of Vestavia Hills in 1992 (some parcels are within Birmingham’s municipal jurisdiction), and the Sicard 
Hollow Athletic Complex (SHAC) was constructed in 2009 (Phase I) to provide multi-purpose fields for the City of 
Vestavia Hills recreational programs.  While the SHAC is most proximal to the Liberty Park community, residents 
from all parts of Vestavia Hills and visiting teams have traveled there to use its multi-purpose fields and it is a 
nationally recognized complex that hosts regional tournaments.  In 2013, assistance from the Abandoned Mine Land 
program made it possible to construct Phase II of the park so that as of 2017 it now features trails, a splash pad, 
playground, and a pavilion.  These have given the park more regional draw, and it has an estimated 3,000 visitors 
each week.   
 
In addition to the community served by the athletic 
facilities (Vestavia Hills, Birmingham area, and the 
US Southeast), there is the community served by 
the passive recreational features of the park.  
Liberty Park, which is part of Vestavia Hills, is 
most proximal to the SHAC.  Currently there are 
1600 existing residences plus 1400 that will be 
constructed over the next fifteen years.  As a 
passive recreational destination, the SHAC may 
also be anticipated to serve the residents of Cahaba 
Heights (pop. 5,500), Patchwork Farms (1,000 
multi-family units within one mile), and Altadena 
Valley (29 residences), each of which is a 12-17 
minute driving distance from the SHAC.  As a 
public park, the SHAC also serves any others in the Birmingham area who wish to travel to its splash pad, trails, 
amphitheater events, or other features.   

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



VH
BudgetProjection

SHAC
III,AM

L
Grant

reduced
to

$750K
(firstprepared

6/27/2018)
THIS

HAS
N
O
T
BEEN

REVIEW
ED

BY
PU

BLIC
SERVICES

PE/STU
DY

PE/STU
DY

PE/STU
DY

DESIGN
DESIGN

DESIGN
EQ

U
IPM

EN
T

EQ
U
IPM

EN
T

EQ
U
IPM

EN
T

CO
N
STRU

CTIO
N

CO
N
STRU

CTIO
N

CO
N
STRU

CTIO
N

CE&
I

CE&
I

CE&
I

ADM
IN
/PRO

G
(inc.
notices,m

tgs)

ADM
IN
/PRO

G
(inc.
notices,m

tgs)

ADM
IN
/PRO

G
(inc.
notices,m

tgs)
TO

TAL
BU

DGET
FISCAL

YEAR
BU

DGETED
**collapsed

w
ith

hidden
cells**

GRAN
T
BU

DGET
2018

2019
2020

2018
2019

2020
2018

2019
2020

2018
2019

2020
2018

2019
2020

2018
2019

2020
Addition

ofRightTurn
Lane

$350,000
.

$35,000
.

$0
$35,000

.
.

.
.

.
$171,500

$73,500
$24,500

$10,500
.

.
.

$350,000
Parking

Im
provem

ents
$50,000

.
$5,000

.
$0

$6,500
.

.
.

.
.

$28,500
.

$10,000
.

.
.

$50,000
Am

phitheater
$175,000

.
$8,750

.
$19,750

.
.

.
.

$92,000
$38,000

$11,500
$5,000

.
.

.
$175,000

Pavilion
$40,000

$2,000
.

.
.

.
$0

$32,000
.

.
$4,000

.
$2,000

.
.

.
$40,000

Public
W
iFi

$30,000
.

$3,000
.

.
$3,500

.
.

.
.

.
$20,500

.
$3,000

.
.

.
$30,000

M
ultiPurpose

Athletic
Court

$90,000
.

$9,000
.

$0
$9,000

.
.

.
.

.
$63,000

.
$9,000

.
.

.
$90,000

Field/Slope
Stabilization

$3,500
.

$420
.

.
$420

.
.

.
.

.
$2,240

$420
$3,500

Sidew
alks

$11,500
.

$1,380
.

.
$1,380

.
.

.
.

.
$7,360

.
$1,380

.
.

.
$11,500

$0
$750,000

$0
$64,550

$0
$0

$75,550
$0

$0
$32,000

$0
$0

$389,100
$111,500

$0
$61,800

$15,500
$0

$0
$0

$750,000

$750,000
$64,550

$75,550
$32,000

$500,600
$77,300

$0

Asa
default,design/construction

w
ascalculated

as15%
/85%

.
O
nly

the
prefabricated

pavilion
w
asbudgeted

asequipm
ent,

i.e.thism
ay

notaccountforthe
possibility

thatthe
City

could
purchase

equipm
entto

be
installed,e.g.broadband

Budgetby
FiscalYear

2018
2019

2020
PE/STU

DY
$0

$64,550
$0

DESIGN
$0

$75,550
$0

EQ
U
IPM

EN
T

$0
$32,000

$0
CO

N
STRU

CTIO
N

$0
$389,100

$111,500
CE&

I
$0

$61,800
$15,500

ADM
IN
/PRO

G
$0

$0
$0

$0
$623,000

$127,000
$750,000

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5103



     
    

July2,2018
update

no
w
ork

in
FY18,reduce

to
$750K

March 18

April 18

May 18

June 18

July 18

August 18

Sept. 18

October 18

November 18

December 18

January 19

February +19

March 19

April 19

May 19

June 19

July 19

August 19

Sept. 19

October 19

November 19

December 19

January 20

February 20

March 20

April 20

May 20

June 20

July 20

August 20

Sept. 20

October 20

November 20

December 20

FY2018
$0

FY2019
$623,000

FY2020
$127,000

Addition
ofrightturn

lane

Parking
im

provem
ents

Am
phitheater

Pavilion

Public
W
ifi

M
ultipurp.athletic

court

ADD’L
DESIRED

W
O
RK

Field/slope
stabilization

Sidew
alks

Item
Expendituresto

Date
Projected

Total
AM

L
Budgeted

Variance
Addition

ofrightturn
lane

$350,000
($360000)

Parking
im

provem
ents

$50,000
($95,000)

Am
phitheater

$175,000
($300,000)

Pavilion
$40,000

($50,000)
Public

W
ifi

$30,000
($75,000)

M
ultipurp.Athletic

court
$90,000

($120,000)
Field/slope

stabilization
$3,500

(unk)
Sidew

alks
$11,500

(unk)
TO

TAL
$750,000

($1,000,000)
$750,000

STU
DY/DESIGN

/BID
PRO

CESS

PRO
CU

REM
EN

T
PRO

PO
SALS

AW
ARD

CO
N
TRACT/PU

RCHASE
CO

N
STRU

CTIO
N
/IN

STALLATIO
N

PRO
JECTED

CO
M
PLETIO

N

PO
SSIBLE

W
EATHER

ISSU
ES

Com
m

ented [M
H

1]: 85%
FY19,10%

FY20,5%
FY18

Com
m

ented [M
H

2]: 50%
FY19,50%

FY18…
orput

100%
FY19?

Com
m

ented [M
H

3]: 80%
FY19,20%

FY18

Com
m

ented [M
H

4]: U
nk?

Adjustw
ifi

E
xh

ib
it 

- R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 5
10

3



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2803 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH RICE ADVISORY, LLC.  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a professional 

services agreement with Rice Advisory, LLC; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this 

Ordinance Number 2803 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2803 is effective immediately upon adoption and 

publication/posting as required by Alabama law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
  



 
 

 1

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
            THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into between 
the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (hereinafter called the “City”) and Rice Advisory, LLC (hereinafter 
called the “Financial Advisor”), whose offices are located at 250 Commerce Street, 3rd Floor, 
Montgomery, Alabama 36104. 
 
            NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Financial Advisor mutually agree as follows: 
 
1       Scope of Services. 

       
The Financial Advisor shall provide financial advisory services on an ongoing basis to the City as 

may be directed. Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, it is expressly understood that the Financial 
Advisor represents only the City. For the purposes of this Agreement, “City” shall include those agencies, 
component units, authorities and public corporations, which are, or may become, authorized to incur debt. 
The scope of services to be performed shall include, but not be limited to: 
 

a) Assisting the City in financial analysis and suggesting possible revisions to the City’s 
debt policies and strategies;  

b) Advising the City on continuing matters relating to its overall debt management 
including actions to be taken by the City to improve or maintain the credit ratings of the 
City;  

c) Analyzing financing alternatives for the City; 

d) Preparation of Requests for Proposals (RFPs) in advance of any contemplated City 
financing projects and distribution of such RFPs to a wide selection of capable 
professional firms;  

e) Evaluation of financial proposals received by the City from underwriters, banks and 
other entities (including those received pursuant to RFPs) and assisting the City and its 
counsel in the selection of professionals for participation in City financing projects; 

f) Working to minimize the professional fees and expenses payable in connection with 
any City financing in order to produce the lowest possible effective financing costs for 
the City; 

g) Comparing the debt management practices of the City with those of other 
municipalities and making recommendations for improvements; 

h) Preparing analyses and evaluations of potential refunding and new money issues, to 
include cost-benefit analysis of credit enhancement, coordinating team communications 
and activities, providing document review, participation in due diligence and disclosure 
activities, reviewing underwriter’s analysis related to sizing, structure and flow of 
funds, allocation, advising on pricing and coordination of post-closing review; 

i) Providing as-needed financial advice regarding market conditions and trends, financial 
products, credit and credit analysis, third party alternative financing and special facility 
financing; 

j) Reviewing and evaluating financing options, derivative and other innovative products, 
financial feasibility studies, legal documents, and escrow agreements; 

k) Preparation of rating agency presentations, official statements and other disclosure 
materials; 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2803



 
 

 2

l) Monitoring congressional, legislative and regulatory developments which might impact 
the City; 

m) Assisting the City in the preparation of reports, disclosure documents and other tasks 
related to Dodd-Frank compliance requirements; 

n) Providing advice on economic incentives and innovative financing structures in support 
of the City’s economic, industrial and commercial development initiatives, including 
providing support in all recruitment efforts of the City; 

o) Attendance at City Council meetings or meetings of other City boards and agencies as 
requested, with reasonable notice provided; 

p) Participation in all teleconferences as requested; and 

q) Providing other financial advisory services as requested. 
 
2       Compensation. 

 
a)  Per-transaction fee. With respect to the issuance of each series of bonds, notes or 

other debt of the City or its agencies, the fees to the Financial Advisor will be 
determined on a cost per $1,000.00 basis, with no such per-transaction fees payable 
until and unless a transaction is closed, as shown below: 

i)  For amounts up to $10 million: $2.00 per $1,000.00 with a minimum fee of 
$20,000.00; 

ii)  For amounts over $10 million up to $15 million: $1.90 per $1,000.00 for the 
amount above $10 million, plus amount due pursuant to (i) above; 

iii)  For amounts over $15 million up to $20 million: $1.80 per $1,000.00 for the 
amount above $15 million, plus amount due pursuant to (i) and (ii) above; 

iv)  For amounts over $20 million: $1.70 per $1,000.00 for the amount above $20 
million, plus amount due pursuant to (i), (ii) and (iii) above, provided, 
however, that in no case shall the Financial Advisor’s total per-transaction 
fee exceed $50,000.00 for any transaction.  

b) Hourly fee. There will be no additional charge, hourly or otherwise, for work 
completed in connection with a specific financing transaction of the City as described 
in paragraph 2(a) above. Fees for general financial advisory services not connected to a 
specific financing transaction will be billed monthly, in arrears, commencing _______ 
1, 2015 and on the first day of each month thereafter for the term of this Agreement at 
the rate of $140.00 per hour. Such hourly fees will be payable only for work performed 
by Registered Municipal Advisors employed by the Financial Advisor. No hourly fee 
work will be commenced without the City’s authorization, and the Financial Advisor 
will be required to provide the City with written “not to exceed” estimates before 
commencing such work. 

c)  Expenses. No reimbursement will be expected for normal operating expenses or 
general office overhead including telephone, regular postage, and related items. 
Automobile travel to locations other than the City in furtherance of City business will 
be reimbursed at the rate of $0.50 per mile. At no time will the City incur any such 
expense without first discussing with the Financial Advisor. 

d)  Per-transaction expenses. Expenses directly attributable to a specific transaction will 
be reimbursed at cost. In no event will the total cost of reimbursable expenses for any 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2803



 
 

 3

single transaction exceed $2,500 for such transaction unless approved in advance by 
the City. 

e)  Other expenses. Other costs of any transaction, for example: bond counsel fees, 
disclosure counsel fees, rating agency fees, printing, and other related costs are 
considered outside of the definition of reimbursable expenses as contemplated 
above. However, the Financial Advisor will be involved in minimizing these costs, 
where and when appropriate, on behalf of the City. 

 
3          Independent Contractor.  The Financial Advisor acknowledges and agrees that it is an 
independent contractor and this agreement does not create an employer-employee relationship between 
the Financial Advisor and the City.  
 
4           Insurance.  The Financial Advisor does hereby agree to name the City as “Additional Insured-As 
Their Interest May Appear,” in its Commercial Auto Liability Insurance and Commercial General 
Liability Insurance; and to keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement the following 
minimum limits of insurance, and to provide the City with Certificates of Insurance with a 30 day Notice 
of Cancellation evidencing such insurance: 
 
Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance including Hired and Non-Owned Auto Liability: $1,000,000 
Combined Single Limit of Liability; 
 
Commercial General Liability Insurance: $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit Per Occurrence/$2,000,000 
Aggregate Limit of Liability; $1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury; $2,000,000 Products and 
Completed Operations Liability; 
 
Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance: Insurance must meet the insurance 
requirements as set forth in the current Workers Compensation Act of the State of Alabama.  Minimum 
Employers Liability Limits: $1,000,000 Each Accident; $1,000,000 Disease Each Employee; $1,000,000 
Disease policy Limit. 
 
5 Immigration Law Compliance.  By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the 
duration of the agreement, that they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire 
for employment or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a 
contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the Agreement 
and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 
 
6 Indemnification.  The Financial Advisor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its 
officers, employees, council members, agents, and representatives from and against any and all liens, 
claims, actions, suits, damage judgments, liabilities, causes of action, assessments, fines, loss, injuries 
(including death), costs and/or expenses (including without limitation attorneys fees and all other costs 
and expenses), amounts paid in settlement or otherwise suffered or incurred by the City, its officers, 
employees, council members, agents, or representatives caused by, arising out of, or by reason of any 
wrongful act, omission, or non-action of the Financial Advisor or its officers, employees, agents, servants, 
sub-contractors, or representatives arising from, incidental to or in any way related to the Financial 
Advisor’s services under this Agreement.  
 
7 No Assignment.  No part of this Agreement, nor any right, obligation, or privilege created or 
provided hereunder, shall be assigned or transferred unless the City shall first approve the same in 
writing, nor shall the Financial Advisor attempt to sell or attempt to transfer this Agreement or any rights 
hereunder to another without written approval of the City. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2803



 
 

 4

 
8 Governing Law and Dispute Resolution.  This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama. Any and all disputes arising under, out of, 
or in relation to this Agreement, its negotiation, performance, termination, or any alleged breach thereof 
(which dispute is not resolved by negotiation between the parties within thirty days after written demand 
therefor is made by either party), shall, upon thirty days written notice by either party to the other, first be 
resolved by the parties attempting mediation in the City, by a single mediator pursuant to the Alabama 
Civil Court Mediation Rules. The parties shall share equally the costs of the Mediator, and each party 
shall bear its own costs. If the dispute is not resolved by mediation within sixty days of the 
commencement of the mediation, either party may elect to litigate the dispute in the state or federal courts 
located in the State of Alabama.  
   
9          Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective upon the date of its execution and shall 
terminate on September 15, 2021. This Agreement may be extended for one (1) year term or on a month-
to-month basis at the option of the City. In no event shall a term of this Agreement exceed a period of 
three (3) years. 
 
10        Termination.  The City may, at any time and without cause, cancel this Agreement by serving 
ninety (90) days written notice to the Financial Advisor of its intent to cancel. In the event of such 
cancellation, the City’s only obligation to the Financial Advisor shall be payment for services rendered 
prior to the effective date of the cancellation. All information and work product developed by the 
Financial Advisor shall be turned over to and deemed the property of the City. 
 
 DONE this ___ day of ________________, 2018. 
 
 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  RICE ADVISORY, LLC  
 
 
 
By: _____________________________    By: __________________________ 
        Its   Mayor                 Its Managing Director  
 
 
By: _____________________________    
       Its   City Manager    
 
 
 
Attested by:___________________________ 
  City Clerk 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2803



Exhibit - Ordinance 2803



Resolution Number 5104 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5104 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO COMPLETE STREET REPAIRS ON 
VESTAVIEW LANE DUE TO A WATER MAIN BREAK 

 
 WHEREAS, in June 2018, a Birmingham Water Works water main broke and severely 

damaged a portion of Vestaview Lane forcing an emergency closure of the roadway for a 

temporary repair; and 

 WHEREAS, the temporary road repair along with the adjacent roadway continued to 

deteriorate in this high-traffic area to the point of being determined as hazardous for the traveling 

public; and 

 WHEREAS, an Inter-Department Memorandum dated October 3, 2018 from the City 

Engineer to the City Manager explained the needed emergency roadway repair at an estimated cost 

of $77,204.50 and recommended that the roadway be repaired immediately due to the condition of 

the roadway and the location in a high-traffic area.  He also indicated that the Birmingham Water 

Works Board has stated that they will reimburse the City said repair costs estimated at $77,204.50; 

and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said memorandum is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 5104 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to declare said 

roadway repair as an emergency and authorize the immediate repair of said street. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to make emergency repairs to that portion of 

Vestaview Lane impacted and damaged by the Birmingham Water Works water main 

break in an amount estimated at $77,204.50; and 

2. Upon submittal of the invoice of said repairs, the City Manager shall request 

reimbursement from the Birmingham Water Works Board for the cost of said repairs; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5104 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 

 



Resolution Number 5104 
Page 2 

 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of October, 2018. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5104



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5104



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5104



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5104



1720 Vestaview Lane, BWWB main burst, 6/1/18 

 

 

 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5104


	2018_1008CC_A
	2018_0917CC_work session
	2018_0924CC_M
	Resolution 5094
	Ordinance 2797
	Resolution 5095
	Ordinance 2798
	Resolution 5096
	Ordinance 2799
	Resolution 5097
	Ordinance 2802
	Resolution 5102
	Resolution 5103
	Ordinance 2803
	Resolution 5104



